

Request for Proposal (RFP)

For

Selection of Mobile App Development Partner

StockHolding Services Ltd.
P-51, SHCIL House, Mahape, MIDC
Navi Mumbai - 400 710



# **Table of Contents**

# Contents

1.	RFP Details and Important Dates	3
2.	Disclaimer	3
3.	Introduction	4
4.	Need for Mobile App Upgrade	4
5.	Scope of Work	5
6.	Project Timelines	19
7.	Eligibility Criteria	20
8.	Clarifications regarding RFP Document, Bid Preparation & Submission of Bid	21
9.	RFP Evaluation Process	23
10.	Payment Terms	26
11.	Terms and Conditions	26
12.	General Terms and Conditions	28
13.	Termination of Contract	29
14.	Dispute Resolution	29
15.	Governing Law	30
16.	Jurisdiction of Courts	30
17.	Force Majeure	30
Anne	exure 1 – Details of Bidders Profile	31
Anne	exure 2 – Eligibility Criteria	32
Anne	exure 3	34
Anne	exure 4	35
Anne	exure 5	37
Anne	exure 6	38
Δnn	exilre 7	39



# 1. RFP Details and Important Dates

Name of the Company	StockHolding Services Ltd	
RFP Reference No	RFP/ SSL/MOBAPP/2024-25/001	
Date of issue	21-Oct-2024	
Submission of Pre-Bid Queries	Date	25-Oct-2024
	Time	3.00 P.M.
Schedule of Pre-Bid Meeting	Date	29-Oct-2024
	Time	11.00 A.M.
Schedule for Receipt of Bids	Date	11-Nov-2024
	Time	11.30 A.M.
	Rs. 11,800/- (Ru	pees Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred only)
Cost of the Bid Application Cost of Bid	Inclusive of 18%	GST in the form of Demand Draft / NEFT in favor
Application (Non-Refundable)	of 'Stockholding Services Limited', payable at Mumbai only to be	
Application (Non-Kerundable)	submitted along with the Bid.	
	A Bid Security of Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh only) by way of	
Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)	Demand Draft / NEFT/ RTGS in favor of 'Stockholding Services	
Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)	Limited 'payable at Mumbai only to be submitted along with the	
(Refundable)	Bid.	
Schedule for Opening of Technical	Date	11-Nov-2024
Bids	Time	03:30 P.M.
	Stockholding Se	rvices Limited
	SHCIL House, P-51, TTC Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai Pin	
Diago of Dro hid mooting/Submission	400710.	
Place of Pre-bid meeting/ Submission and Opening of Bids/ address for		
Communication & Email id	Contact Person: Ms. Poornima Waikar, Ms. Yogini Avhad	
Communication & Email to	Contact Details: 022-61778675, 9930262428, 8082513220	
	Email ID : mob_	tender2024@stockholdingservices.com

# 2. Disclaimer

The information contained in this Request for Proposal ("RFP / Bid Document") or information provided subsequently to bidder(s) or applicants whether verbally or in documentary form by or on behalf of Stock Holding Services Limited ("SSL"), is provided to the bidder(s) on the terms and conditions set out in this RFP document and all other terms and conditions subject to which such information is provided. This RFP document is not an agreement and is neither an offer nor an invitation by SSL to any parties other than the applicants who are qualified to submit the bids ("Bidders"). The purpose of this RFP is to provide the Bidder(s) with information to assist them in formulation of their proposals ("Bids"). This RFP does not claim to contain all the information each Bidder may require. Each Bidder may conduct its own independent investigations and analysis and is free to check the accuracy, reliability and completeness of the information in this RFP. SSL makes no representation or warranty and shall incur no liability under any law, statute, rules or regulations as to the accuracy, reliability or completeness of this RFP. SSL may in its absolute discretion, but without being under any obligation to do so, update, amend or supplement the information in this RFP. The



information contained in the RFP document is selective and is subject to update, expansion, revision and amendment. SSL does not undertake to provide any Bidder with access to any additional information or to update the information in this RFP or to correct any inaccuracies therein, which may become apparent. SSL reserves the right of discretion to change, modify, add to or alter any or all of the provisions of this RFP and/or the bidding process, without assigning any reasons whatsoever. Such change will be intimated or made accessible to all Bidders. Any information contained in this document will be superseded by any later written information on the same subject made available / accessible to all recipients by SSL. SSL reserves the right to reject any or all the expression of interest / proposals / Bids received in response to this RFP at any stage without assigning any reason whatsoever. The decision of SSL shall be final, conclusive and binding an all the parties. It may be noted that notice regarding corrigenda, addendums, amendments, time extensions, clarifications, response to bidders" queries etc., if any to RFP, will not be published through any advertisement in newspapers or any other media. Prospective bidders shall regularly visit SSL website for any changes / development in relation to this RFP.

# 3. Introduction

- StockHolding Services Limited (SSL) is a SEBI registered Corporate Stock Broker providing safe and reliable services to all institutional and retail clients across length and breadth of the country.
- SSL offers services in both Cash and F&O segment of BSE & NSE and commodities segment of MCX. SSL started broking operations in July 2006.
- It has a large clientele base in retail segment.
- It also has wide clientele in institutional segment comprising leading domestic institutional investors, including Mutual Funds, Insurance Companies, Banks and other Financial Institutions.
- SSL's strength lies in the operational synergies and leverage of the parent company StockHolding corporation of India Limited (Stockholding), which was incorporated as the special initiative of the Government of India as a public limited company in 1986 and is jointly promoted by IFCI Ltd, LIC, SU-UTI, GIC, NIA, NIC, UIC and TOICL. SSL is a broking arm of StockHolding Corporation of India Limited.

# 4. Need for Mobile App Upgrade

SSL has rapid business growth plans and aspires to be one of the leaders in the BFSI segment.
 SSL realizes that the significant increase in smartphone users and huge expansion of UPI ecosystem in India has made it imperative to make more and more innovative services available on the mobile phone for short term as well as long term enterprise viability.



- SSL has recently upgraded its trading software and uses the integrated trading system of Tata
  Consultancy Services (TCS). With the increase in number of investors preferring the convenience
  of Internet and Mobile trading, SSL intends to further upgrade its existing mobile applications for
  Full service Broking and Discount broking with advanced features and services to enhance the
  trading experience of its clients.
- In order to achieve and sustain ambitious growth plans, it is imperative that SSL develops a
  feature rich mobile platform aimed at clearly defined, scalable, flexible and efficient operating
  model while simultaneously managing risks and meeting security and compliance requirements.
- The implementation is expected to enable the organization to leapfrog over its competitors in terms of both products and services and provide its customers with an all-round compelling and satisfying experience.
- To expedite the project's seamless implementation within an optimal timeframe, SSL has chosen to engage with a development partner. The development partner will be responsible for end to end development of the new mobile application.
- This document attempts to outline the basic requirements but may not be complete or all inclusive.
- Bidders are expected to provide their inputs, specifications wherever they have capabilities over and above those sought / listed in this document. SSL reserves the rights to fine tune its requirements / activities at any point of time during the implementation of this project.

# 5. Scope of Work

### 5.1. Functional Scope of Work

Following is the functional scope of work for the mobile app development.

Module	Sub-Module	Data Points/Functionality
No. of Apps	<ul><li>2 Apps</li><li>1. StockFin 2.0 (Full Service App)</li><li>2. SHAREPA (Discount Broking app)</li></ul>	The discount broking app to be similar to the full service app only with limited changes.
Asset Classes	Equity - NSE/BSE (including Listed G-Sec/Bonds or any other securities) Derivatives - NSE/BSE Derivatives Commodities - MCX Mutual Funds through exchanges and/or RTA	
User type supported	All category of clients	



Splash Screen	Welcome Screen	Editable through admin
		Login with 2FA
		Logout
		Session Management through
		Middleware of the vendor
	User Login	MPIN /Fingerprint/Face ID (set /edit)
		Open Account Button
		PIN / Password expiry
Login		(90 days Logic)
		Forgot Username
		Forgot Password
		Forgot MPIN
	Login Help	Unlock Account
		Change Password
		Dormancy Enablement
		FAQs/Help
	Default Landing Page	Indices Button across app with
		option to edit Indices View
Dashboard		Market News
		Portfolio Overview
		Order and Funds Overview
		Any other data point agreed in design phase
	Predefined Market Watch	Hosted and Managed through
	Portfolio Market Watch	Middleware of the vendor
Market Watch	User Market Watch	<ul> <li>Show Available Qty wherever applicable</li> </ul>
	(Create/Delete/Mark as Default)	<ul> <li>Buy and Sell option through</li> </ul>
	Add/Delete/Rearrange Scrip	portfolio MW
		Smart Search with prioritized
	Interactive Search Bar with Recent Search Logic	results for EQ and FNO, ETF,
Search		Mutual Fund, Currency, Commodity results to be shown
Statuti		after EQ and FNO
		ISIN based scrip search
	Recently Searched Scrips	Last 10 Search history



Quotes	Equity	LTP ATP Price Range Volume LTT LTV LTQ TTV OHLC 52W High/Low All Time High/Low Charts - Intraday and Historical Market Depth with Total Orders and Qty Technical Data Points Fundamental Data Points Future & Options Company info & Financials Resistance & Support News Alerts Corporate Actions Add to Watch list Action Button Option Chain Action Button Buy/Sell/eSIP Action Button SWOT Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase
--------	--------	--



Quotes	Derivatives	LTP OHLC OI OI Change ATP Volume Price Range TTV LTT LTQ LTV Spot Price Lot Size Expiry Date Market Depth with Total Orders and Qty Charts - Intraday and Historical Resistance & Support PCR Other Active Futures Technical Datapoints Option Chain Set Alert Action Button Add to Watch list Action Button Option Chain Action Button Buy/Sell Action Button Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase
--------	-------------	--



Quotes	Commodities	LTP OHLC OI OI Change ATP Volume Price Range TTV LTT LTQ LTV Spot Price Lot Size Expiry Date Market Depth with Total Orders and Qty Charts - Intraday and Historical Resistance & Support PCR Other Active Futures Technical Datapoints Option Chain Set Alert Action Button Add to Watch list Action Button Option Chain Action Button Buy/Sell Action Button Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase
Quotes	MF	Category Star Rating NAV min. SIP Amount Min. One Time Amount Age Scheme Type AUM Expense Ratio Risk Historical Returns (1m/3m/6m/1y/3y/5y/all time) Return Calculator- SIP and One Time Fund Details - Fund Manager Name, Exit Load, etc. Asset Allocation Scheme Information Document Purchase/Redeem/SIP/SWP/STP Action Button Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase



Quotes	Indices	LTP OHLC 52 Week High/Low All Time High/Low Chart Constituents and Contributions News Indices Future & Options Option Chain Global Indices Set Alert Action Button Any other data point agreed in the Design phase
Markets	Equity	Top Gainers/Losers 52 week High/Low Most Active Volume Most Active Value Upper Circuit Lower Circuit Bulk/Block Deals FII / DII activity DPR Heat Map sector wise Performance indicator- green/ Red Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase
Markets	Derivatives	Top Gainers Top Losers Roll Over Put Call Ratio Most Active Future & Options OI Gainers OI Losers IV Gainers IV Losers Long Build Up/ Short Build up/Long Unwinding/Short Covering Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase
Markets	IPO	Top Performing IPOs Forthcoming IPOs Current IPOs Recently Listed IPOs Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase
Markets	MF	Top Performing Schemes filter wise Mutual Fund Screeners High Returns MF SIP with 100/500/1000 Most Popular Funds ETFs New Fund Offers Any other Data Points as agreed in Design phase



	Live intraday Charts	Trade From Charts Options
Charts	Simple Charts with Default Chart Types - Intraday/1W/15D/1M/3M/1Y/5Y/ All Time data	Multi time frame and charting tools integration
	Integration with third party charting library	
		Exchange:
		NSE/BSE
		Order Types:
		CNC - Delivery/ Carry Forward
		Margin - MIS/Intraday
		MTF
		Cover Order
		Bracket Order
Order Placement	Equity/Derivetives	AMO
Order Placement	Equity/Derivatives	GTC/GTD
		Equity SIP
		SOR
		Basket Order
		GTC/GTD
		Purchasing Power Prompt (Prompt
		to the user for changing the
		product type to get more quantity or any other prompt like physical
		delivery alert.)
	Commodity	Exchange:
		MCX
Order Placement		Order Types:
Order Placement		Carry Forward
		Intraday
		GTC/GTD
		Today's Order (Modify/Cancel)
	Order Book	Order History
		(Modify/Cancel/Multiple Order Cancel)
		Order Trail (Modify/Cancel)
Orders and Positions		Today's Trade
	Trade Book  Position Book	Trade History
		Open/closed/overall positions
		position conversion/square-
		off/Multiple Square off
	Back office Reports	My Holdings Report
		Ledger Report
Reports		MTF - Interest report
		Contract Note
		Other Reports



		Summary - Overall
		Summary - Asset Class Wise
		Detailed View
	View and Manage Doutfalia	
	View and Manage Portfolio	Transactions View (view and edit)
		Portfolio Events
		Portfolio Analyzer
		Research on My Portfolio
Portfolio		Capital gain/loss (Grandfathering - & NON Grandfathering) - View and Download
	Portfolio Reports	Demat (holding/transactions) with reconciliation option - View and Download
	Portiono Reports	MF - Unit holding - View and
		Download
		Profit & Loss Statement - View and
		Download Transactions History - View and
		Download
		Order Type:
		One Time Purchase
		Additional Purchase
	Place Order	SIP
		Redeem
		SWP
Mutual Funds		STP
		Switch
		NFO/ETF
	Order Book	Today's Order (Modify/Cancel)
		Order History (Modify/Cancel)
		Order Trail (Modify/Cancel)
	Mandate	Create Mandate
		Mandate Status Report
IPO/OFS/Buyback/NCD/	Place Order	Place/modify/cancel order
Bonds	Order Reports	,
	Available Funds	Fungible Limits across Products with in detail Breakup
Funds	Add Funds	UPI and Net Banking Integration with Payment Gateway
i uiius	Withdraw Funds	Display a popup window for upcoming SEBI payout due date
	Fund Transfer History (Last 365 Days)	
Research	Research Ideas Dashboard (All Asset Class)	Admin Dashboard to upload research calls across various product types and asset classes
News	Live News	Integration with Third Party Service provider



Alerts	Add Alerts	Add /edit/delete alerts (For Indices and Scrips)
	View Alerts	. ,
		Order Notifications (Order Placed, modified)
Notifications	Notifications Centre	Trade Notifications
		Personalized Notifications
		Research Notifications
	Personal and Account Details	View/Edit
	Current Brokerage Plan Details	View
	Current Active Segments and Products	enable non active segments like FO/MF/COMM and not active products like E-margin
My Profile	Register Devices	Register New Device/Delete Device
	Settings and Preferences	Notification On/Off, Freeze/Unfreeze, Feeds On/Off, Theme Change (Dark and Light and auto theme setting)
	Trendlyne/CMOTS/Any Other Vendor	For Equity/Derivatives Fundamental and Technical Data Points
Third Party Integrations	CRISIL/CMOTS/Any other Vendor	For Mutual Fund Data Points
, 3	ChartIQ/Trading View	Chart Library and Tools Integration
	Model Portfolio/Thematic Baskets	Integration with third party vendor
	All other Integrations in Future	In-app integration required
Contact Us	RM Details	Calling and Email Feature to
Contact US	Contact Center Details	RM/Contact Center
	Research Ideas (All Asset Class)	Add/Delete/Auto Close/Edit (Through Admin)
	Standard and User Level Notifications	
Admin	In-app Notifications/Banners and Messages	
	Option to create pre-defined watch list	
	Banners and other content management for the app	
	Option to create screeners	
	Coach Screen	
Miscellaneous	Mandatory/non mandatory popups	Banners and content for notifying users regarding any SEBI guidelines/regulations or internal offers
	eDIS integration	On order placement as well as holdings screen
	Pledge/Unpledge	



Analytics	Basic level analytics in the app are required. GA/GTM required as well.
Dynamic Change in Order messages (for better understanding of user)	
Regulatory Changes and Guidelines	Any Regulatory changes suggested by SEBI/Exchanges
Learning Section	Learning Videos User Manual & guide Keyword search option App walkthrough with Audio-visual recording Any other datapoints agreed in design phase.
Screeners	Stock screeners basis a predefined criteria: Simple Moving Average Exponential Moving Average Relative Strength Index Parabolic SAR Bollinger Bands MACD Williams %R 52 Week Breakout Previous Day Breakout Any other screeners agreed

# 5.2. <u>Technical Scope of Work</u>

Requirement	Remarks		
User Concurrency	10,000 (proposed solution to be scalable up to concurrency of 50,000)		
Арр Туре	Flutter		
iPhone Application	iOS 13 and above		
Android Smart Phone Application	Android OS 6.0 and above		
Monitoring Dashboard	Monitoring dashboard to monitor uptime of the application		
Environments	1. SIT, 2. UAT, 3. Prod + HA 4. DR		
Alert Mechanism	Alert mechanism should be available in case of any breakdown		



# **5.3 Application Architecture**

- The proposed solution shall include a logical technical component architecture diagram with a deployment architecture detailing network infrastructure, operating system, and platform requirements.
- The solution shall process near real-time information with minimal latency.
- The technology stack for front-end, middleware, back-end, and other solution components shall be clearly defined.
- Coding and naming standards shall be consistently followed across different components.
- Services shall be secured using appropriate service security mechanisms.
- The system shall be capable of integrating with external systems, with out-of-the-box integrations or plugins where applicable.

# 5.4 Cloud Infrastructure Setup and Maintenance

- The proposed solution should be deployed on the cloud. Illustrative list of areas to be covered
  include but not limited to hosting the middleware of the app on cloud alongside the front end,
  connecting with exchange feeds to ensure minimum latency.
- The selected partner to also provide recommendation for cloud service provider, procure licenses\* and provide managed service for setup and maintenance of cloud infrastructure.
- The partner will also be responsible for setup and maintenance of DR site over cloud.
- The cloud solution should be seamlessly able to integrate with the TCS BaNCS APIs hosted on TCS cloud and other systems like DP system, exchange feeds etc. Vendor should recommend and set up landing zone for consumption of TCS BaNCS APIs with minimum latency.
- The selected partner should provide detailed recommendation on tech architecture for connectivity with TCS solutions (direct leased line), utilities for converting broadcast to unicast for CSPs.
- The cloud infrastructure should be provisioned in a secure, scalable, and highly available environment, leveraging services like AWS, GCP, Azure or any other equivalent private cloud platform(isolated).
- Cloud resources should be dynamically scaled based on real-time demand, ensuring efficient utilization and cost optimization.
- Auto-scaling should be implemented to handle traffic spikes during peak trading hours, ensuring minimal latency.
- Regular infrastructure health checks, monitoring, and resource optimization tasks should be automated.
- Cloud infrastructure should include high availability and disaster recovery setups across multiple regions to minimize downtime during failures.
- Ongoing management should include continuous infrastructure monitoring for cost, performance, and security, with alerts configured for any anomalies.
- The infrastructure should be compliant with security best practices and regulatory compliance.
- Infrastructure backup policies should ensure that critical cloud resources (e.g., databases, storage) are backed up regularly and can be restored within the recovery time objective (RTO).
- \*license cost for procurement of cloud services to be extended to SSL at no markup.

### 5.5 Broadcast and Feeds

• The partner should ensure minimum latency for broadcast feeds over cloud. The system shall support real-time data streaming for live updates of stock prices and market depth, with a latency of



under 50ms.

- It shall support multicast data distribution for efficient dissemination to multiple clients.
- Real-time data delivery shall be optimized for mobile app platform.

## 5.6 Performance

- The proposed system should provide high performance trading capabilities to the user and should be of low latency.
- Response times for user interactions on the mobile shall be quick with low latency.
- Performance benchmarks should be provided, including CPU and memory utilization targets.
- The system shall handle high concurrency, supporting tens of thousands of users and trades simultaneously.
- The UI/UX performance shall be optimized to ensure smooth and uniform behavior across all platforms.

## 5.7 Compliance

- The system shall comply with Indian financial regulations, including SEBI and RBI guidelines, and ensure KYC processes are integrated (Aadhaar, PAN).
- The system shall also adhere to data privacy regulations like GDPR (if applicable), ensuring data deletion or anonymization when requested by users

# 5.8 Security and Reliability

- The application should be VAPT compliant as per guidelines of exchanges and SEBI
- Data Encryption: All communication between various systems of the proposed solution and API message exchange must be encrypted as per current exchanges and SEBI protocols.
- The application shall follow secure coding practices, including encrypting data throughout the system using protocols suggested by regulator.
- User Authentication: Proposed solution should be able to manage client authentication on its own and ensure access only to Authorized individuals only. The authentication mechanism should be compliant with guidelines proposed by SEBI and exchanges. High-level authentication and proper session management practices should be enforced, including multi-factor authentication (MFA) for sensitive operations.
- Solution should ensure seamless connectivity with Market Data Feeds, TCS BaNCS Front Office, Back Office and any other solution.
- All successful and unsuccessful attempts to access data shall be recorded in an audit trail.
- Alert Mechanism should be available to notify internal stakeholders about breakdown in connectivity or any other system.
- The application should follow a standardized error handling framework.
- Errors should be logged and reported, with logging mechanisms for runtime crashes
- Batch processes should include workload management for event-based and time-based processing.
- The Solution should handle system failures without disrupting trading operations with help of fault tolerant mechanisms
- Servers, data storage and other critical components of the solution should be HA enabled to ensure continuous operation in the event of failures.
- Regular security and performance tests shall be conducted to ensure system reliability.



# 5.9 Availability and Scalability

- The system shall be highly available, with failover mechanisms for application and database recovery.
- The system shall include geographically distributed disaster recovery setups to ensure minimal downtime.
- Downtime incidents shall be instantly reported to the admin.
- The application shall be highly scalable, both horizontally and vertically, to handle future growth in terms of user traffic, trade volume, and data processing.
- Dynamic load balancing shall be used to manage varying loads, especially during high-traffic periods.
- The mobile platform shall adapt to increased usage or handle more data as needed over time.

# 5.10 Audit Trail and Compliance

- The system should secure data during UI display and maintain comprehensive audit trails.
- Audit trail reports should be provided for reporting.
- The application shall comply with Indian financial regulations, such as SEBI and KYC, ensuring data retention for transaction histories and audit logs.
- Data privacy laws (e.g., GDPR) shall be adhered to, allowing users to request data deletion or anonymization.

# 5.11 Reporting

- Performance Reports should be available at all times to monitor load times, server response times and overall solution performance.
- A centralized logging and monitoring system shall track performance, errors, security events, and trade execution, with real-time dashboards for administrators.
- The system shall trigger alerts in case of abnormal trading patterns, system failures, or security breaches.
- Data Retention for transactional and non-transactional data and logs to be maintained for 5 years as per SEBI Regulation.
- NOC and SOC service to be enabled for the solution and SIEM report to be shared with us on a monthly basis.

# **5.12 Transaction Safety and Integrity**

- The application should ensure transactional integrity for all buy/sell orders and trading operations.
- Mechanisms for transaction rollbacks should be in place to handle cancellations or failures.
- The system should ensure consistency and safety of trade-related transactions.

### **5.13 Application Maintainability**

- The application shall support version control and error reporting, with high-priority errors triggering alerts to the respective teams.
- It shall include features for tracking in-app events and analyzing user behavior.
- System errors and production issues shall be logged and reported to the relevant teams in real time



# 5.14 Disaster Recovery and Backup

- A disaster recovery plan with a recovery time objective of 15 minutes shall be implemented.
- Daily backups of transactional and customer data shall be encrypted and stored securely in diverse locations.

# 5.15 Testability

- The system shall support automation testing frameworks for mobile app testing.
- Regular security and performance tests shall be conducted to ensure system reliability.

# **5.16 Load Balancing and Concurrency**

- The system shall support dynamic load balancing, ensuring optimal performance during high-traffic events such as market openings or IPOs.
- The app shall support high concurrency levels, with efficient handling of user and trade volume surges

### 5.17 Support

- Partner to ensure a dedicated helpdesk is set up to handle queries, issues and requests post project deployment cooling period.
- Partner to share access of its existing ticketing system for tracking and managing support requests efficiently
- Partner to set up real time alert mechanisms for potential issues, failures, downtime and abnormal behavior of the application.
- Partner to define procedures for releasing patches and updates to resolve bugs, security vulnerabilities and enhance features in UAT, production and DR clearly.
- Partner to conduct regular security audits to identify and address potential vulnerabilities as required by the regulators.
- Partner to provide development and deployment of regulatory changes within the stipulated timelines at no additional cost.
- Partner will need to execute a structured SLA with SSL for regular and emergency support to address
  critical issues promptly. A detailed matrix of High, Medium and Low priority issues to be created
  alongside mutually agreed resolution timelines.



# 6. Project Timelines

The development partner is required to ensure successful go live of the mobile application within the prescribed timelines as described in the RFP document. Below are the key milestones proposed for launch of full service and discount broking apps.

Sr. No	Milestone	Timelines from Project Kick Off	
1	Infrastructure Set Up and Development Kick Off in SIT environment	4 Weeks	
2	App Design (UI and UX) of Full Scope	6 Weeks	
3	UAT Drop 1*: Equity, Derivatives covering all Order and Non-Order Placement Journeys for full service and discount	16 - 18 Weeks	
4	Go Live: Equity, Derivatives covering all Order and Non- Order Placement Journeys including playstore/appstore approval	24 - 26 Weeks	
5	UAT Drop 2: MF, Commodities and other remaining functionalities of the scope	26 Weeks	
6	Go Live: MF, Commodities and other remaining functionalities of the scope including playstore/appstore approval	32 Weeks	
	Total Timeline to complete the Project	32 Weeks	

Note: It is expected that there will be intermediate QA certified UAT builds between weeks 8 to 16 which will be provided for testing of completed modules like login, quotes, watchlist, markets, etc. Selected bidder is expected to release all the builds after internal QA certification only.



# 7. Eligibility Criteria

Sr.	Criteria details	Supporting documentation	
No.			
1	The Bidder should be a Corporate / LLP Firm and should have been incorporated under Companies Act, 1956/2013 and subsequent amendments thereto.	•	
2	The Bidder must be a reputed and experienced Company operating in the field of IT apps development for Stocking Broking companies for a minimum period of 5 years.	Self -Declaration by authorized signatory of the Bidder supported by copies of Client Work Order confirming year and area of activity.	
3	The Bidder should be a profit-making company/ firm for the last three consecutive financial years (2023-24, 2022-23, 2021-22)	Audited financial statements	
4	The Bidder should have an average annual turnover of at least INR 2 Crores for last three financial years (2023-24, 2022-23, 2021-22)	Audited financial statements	
5	The Bidder should have a minimum number of 30 full time professional on their payroll to support development, integration and periodic maintenance of the mobile app.	,	
6	The Bidder should have an office registered in India. One of its offices must be in Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMR) region to handle the project smoothly.		
7		Letter from customer / work order mentioning similar assignments.	
8		Letter from customer / work order mentioning similar assignments.	
9	Central Government/ State Governments / Semi- Government	A Self-Declaration to be furnished by the Bidder on the Company's letter head for the same.	



# 8. Clarifications regarding RFP Document, Bid Preparation & Submission of Bid

- This RFP will follow e-tendering process (e-Bids) which will be conducted by SSL's authorized e-tendering vendor M/s. E-Procurement Technologies Ltd.
- No consideration will be given to Bids received after the date and time stipulated and no extension of time will normally be permitted for submission of e-Bids. SSL reserves the right to accept in part or in full, extend, or reject.
- Representative of Bidders may contact the Help Desk of M/s. E-Procurement Technologies Ltd for clarifications on e-Tendering process:

#### Service provider:

### M/s. E-ProcurementTechnologies Ltd (Auction Tiger),

B-705, Wall Street- II, Opp. Orient Club, Ellis Bridge, Near Gujarat College, Ahmedabad- 380006.

#### **Contact Details:**

Cell Number: 9904406300 / 9510812960 / 9265562819 / 9265562821

Email: support@auctiontiger.net

## 8.1 E-RFP Fees

The bid application fees (non-refundable) may be paid by the bidders through Demand draft/ NEFT as per the following details:

Account Number: 00600340028869 Account Name: StockHolding Services Ltd

**IFSC Code:** HDFC0000060, **Branch:** FORT, Mumbai

Amount: INR 11,800/- (Rupees Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred only) Amount includes 18% GST

Note: The Bid Application Fee is non-refundable.

# 8.2 Earnest Money Deposit

Prospective bidders are required to pay towards earnest money deposit (EMD) of Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakh only). SSL will not pay any interest on the EMD. The bidder can also submit the EMD through Demand draft/ NEFT or RTGS as per the following details:

Account Number: 00600340028869 Account Name: StockHolding Services Ltd

**IFSC Code:** HDFC0000060, **Branch:** FORT, Mumbai

Amount: INR 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh only)

- EMD will not carry any interest.
- The EMD made by the bidder will be forfeited if:



- a) The bidder withdraws the tender/ Bid before processing of the same.
- b) The bidder withdraws the tender after processing but before acceptance of 'Purchase Order' to be issued by SSL.
- c) The successful bidder violates any of the provisions of the terms and conditions of this RFP specification.
- d) If the successful bidder fails to enter into the contract agreement with SSL within 30 days/ of issuing the purchase order.

# 8.3 Refund of EMD

- EMD will be refunded to the successful bidder, only after submission of Performance Bank Guarantee of 10% of order value and signing of contract as per timelines defined in the RFP.
- In case of unsuccessful bidders, the EMD will be refunded after expiry of the final bid validity and latest on or before the 30th day after the award of the contract.
- The Performance Bank Guarantee will be released after 3 months of completion of project.

## 8.4 Bid Validity Period

- Bid shall remain valid for duration of six calendar months from Bid submission date.
- Once Purchase Order or Letter of Intent is issued by SSL, the said price will remain fixed for the entire contract period and shall not be subject to variation on any account. Bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation will be treated as non-responsive and will be rejected.

### 8.5 Bid Integrity

Willful misrepresentation of any fact within the bid will lead to the cancellation of the contract without prejudice to other actions that the SSL may take. All the submissions, including any accompanying documents, will become property of the SSL. The bidders shall be deemed to license, and grant all rights to the SSL, to reproduce the whole or any portion of their bid document for the purpose of evaluation and to disclose the contents of submission for regulatory and legal requirements.

# 8.6 Cost of Bid Document

The participating bidders shall bear all the costs associated with or relating to the preparation and submission of their bids including but not limited to preparation, copying, postage, delivery fees, expenses associated with any demonstration or presentations which may be required by the SSL or any other costs incurred in connection with or relating to their bid. The SSL shall not be liable in any manner whatsoever for the same or for any other costs or other expenses incurred by a Bidder regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

### 8.7 Bid Documentation

• The bidder must thoroughly study / analyze and properly understand the contents of this RFP, its meaning and impact of the information contained therein.



- Failure to furnish all information required in this RFP or submission of bid not responsive to this RFP in any respect will be at the bidder's risk and responsibility and the same may finally result in rejection of its bid. The SSL has made considerable effort to ensure that accurate information is contained in this RFP and is supplied solely as guidelines for bidders.
- The information provided by the bidders in response to this RFP will become the property of the SSL and will not be returned. Incomplete information in Bid document may lead to non-consideration of the proposal.
- The bid prepared by the bidder, as well as all correspondences and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the bidder and the SSL and supporting documents and printed literature shall be submitted in English.

# 8.8 Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

- The bidder may modify or withdraw its bid after the bid's submission, provided written notice of the modification, including substitution or withdrawal of the bids, is received at the portal, prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids.
- No modification in the bid shall be allowed, after the deadline for submission of bids.
- No bid shall be withdrawn in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the
  expiration of the period of bid validity specified in this RFP. Withdrawal of a bid during this interval
  may result in the forfeiture of EMD submitted by the bidder.
- The bidder shall be responsible for implementation of the solution within the prescribed timelines.
- Bidder should also ensure that all regulatory requirements as on date and any other systemic changes or new requirements necessitated out of SEBI/other regulatory bodies or other requirements of the SSL between the date of the RFP as well as rollout are made available from day 1.
- Please note that any deviations mentioned in the bid will not be considered and evaluated by the company. SSL reserve the right to reject the bid, if bid is not submitted in proper formats as per RFP.
- Bidder has to submit physical copy of Eligibility Criteria and Technical Bid in two separate closed envelops after online submission of proposal. Both the envelopes need to be submitted on or before last date of submission bid mentioned in RFP document.

# 9. RFP Evaluation Process

- Responses from bidders will be evaluated in three stages, sequentially, as below:
  - Stage A: Evaluation of eligibility will be done as detailed under (Eligibility criteria table)
  - Stage B: Technical evaluation will be done as detailed under Technical criteria
  - Stage C: Commercial evaluation will be done as detailed under Commercial criteria
- The three stage evaluation shall be done sequentially on knock-out basis. This implies that those bidders qualifying in Stage A will only be considered for Stage B and those who qualify in Stage B will only be considered for Stage C.



- Please note that the criteria mentioned in this section are only indicative and SSL at its discretion, may alter these criteria without assigning any reasons. SSL also reserves the right to reject any / all proposal(s) without providing any specific reasons.
- All deliberations and evaluations performed by SSL will be strictly confidential and will be maintained as property of SSL exclusively and will not be available for discussion to any bidder of this RFP.

#### Stage A: Evaluation of Eligibility

- The Bidders of this RFP will present their responses as detailed in this document. The response includes details / evidences in respect of the bidder for meeting the eligibility criteria, leading the SSL to evaluate the bidder on eligibility criteria.
- The bidder will meet the eligibility criteria mentioned in the table. SSL will evaluate the bidders on
  each criterion severally and satisfy itself beyond doubt on the bidders' ability / position to meet the
  criteria. Those bidders who qualify on ALL the criteria will only be considered as "Qualified under
  Stage A" of evaluation and will be considered for evaluation under Stage B.
- Those bidders who do not qualify at this Stage A will not be considered for any further processing. SSL, therefore, requests that only those bidders who are sure of meeting all the eligibility criteria only need to respond to this RFP process.

### Stage B: Evaluation of Technical Bid

#### **Technical Evaluation Criteria**

Sr. No	Particulars	Max. Marks			
1.	Bidder's Profile:	10			
	Vintage, Financial and Operating Overview				
2.	Credentials:	20			
	<ul> <li>Experience of integration with TCS BaNCS APIs on Trading Mobile Application.</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>Experience in setting up, management and maintenance of Cloud Infrastructure for a Broking Mobile app</li> </ul>				
3.	3. Approach and Plan				
	Proposed Solution Architecture for the mobile application including infra setup and managed services capabilities				
	2. UI/UX capabilities				
	3. Approach on overall Project Plan				
4.	Proposed Team Profile:	10			
	Proposed Team Size and key resources				
5.	Presentation and Demo	20			
	Total	100			

- All technical bids of bidders who have qualified Stage A will be evaluated in this stage and a technical score would be arrived at.
- SSL will scrutinize the offers to determine their completeness, errors, omissions in the technical and commercial offers of respective bidders.
- SSL may, at its sole discretion, waive any minor non-conformity or any minor deficiency in an offer.



- SSL reserves the right for such waivers and the SSL's decision in the matter will be final.
- Bidders scoring at least 70 marks or more will be declared technically qualified
- Attested photocopies of all relevant documents / certificates should be submitted as proof in support
  of the claims made. The bidder should provide relevant additional information wherever required in
  the eligibility criteria.
- The SSL reserves the right to verify /evaluate the claims made by the bidder independently. In case a
  clarification is not received within the stipulated time, the respective technical parameter would be
  treated as non-compliant and decision to qualify the bidder shall be accordingly taken by SSL. Any
  decision of SSL in this regard shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the bidder.
- Those bidders who meet the threshold score of 70 or more will be considered as "Qualified under Stage B" and will be considered for evaluation under Stage C.
- Those who do not meet the above threshold will not be considered for further evaluation. The EMD money in respect of such bidders will be returned on completion of the RFP process.

### **Technical Evaluation Methodology**

The Technical score Tx = Score from Eligibility Evaluation.

The Relative Technical Score (RTS) for the Bidders will be calculated based on the following basis:

RTSx = (Tx/T1) \*100

Where,

RTSx: Relative Technical Score of each Bidder

 ${\bf Tx}$ : Technical Score of the Bidder

**T1**: Technical Score of the Bidder with Highest Tx Up to 4 decimal values will be considered for the score.

### **Stage C: Evaluation of Commercial Bid**

- The Bids which are qualified in Technical would be considered for Commercial Bid evaluation.
- The vendor should furnish their price for the project in their Commercial Bid to facilitate the commercial evaluation process.
- Please refer section Annexure 6 Cost Structure for more details

### **Computation Methodology for Commercial Score**

- 70% weightage will be assigned to the Relative Technical Score (RTS) and 30% weightage will be assigned to the Relative commercial score (RCS).
- The Relative Commercial Score (RCS) for each shortlisted vendor will be calculated as given below:

RCS = L1 / L \* 100

Where,

RCS: Relative Commercial Score L: Amount quoted by the bidder

L1: Lowest Amount quoted by lowest quoted (L1) proposal



#### **Final Evaluation**

- The final selection of a Bidder will be based on the outcome of the combined Technical & Commercial Evaluation process for the qualified bidders in the Technical Bid round.
- The Final Evaluation of Score (FES) will be as below:

FES = 0.70 \* RTSX + 0.30 \* RCSX

Where:

FESX = Final Evaluation Score of Vendor X RTSX = Relative Technical Score of Vendor X

**RCSX** = Relative Commercial Score of Vendor XT

- The contract will be awarded to the bidder having the highest Final Evaluation Score (FES) which is an outcome of Techno-Commercial Evaluation process.
- In case of a tie in the combined score between bidders, the bidder with higher technical score will be given a higher rank.
- In the eventuality that less than two eligible bids are received against this RFP, StockHolding reserves the right to proceed with the single bidder or cancel the RFP at its sole discretion.

# 10. Payment Terms

The payment terms will be as under:

Sr. No	Milestone	Payment %		
1	Project Kick Off	10%		
2	App Design (UI and UX) of Full Scope	10%		
3	UAT Drop 1*: Equity, Derivatives covering all Order and Non-Order Placement Journeys for full service and discount			
4	Go Live: Equity, Derivatives covering all Order and Non-Order Placement Journeys including Playstore/Appstore approval			
5	UAT Drop 2: MF, Commodities and other remaining functionalities of the scope			
6	Go Live: MF, Commodities and other remaining functionalities of the scope including playstore/appstore approval	20%		
7	Project Closure	20%		

The payments for each project milestone will be made only after the acceptance of the milestones. Any delay in achievement of the milestones or deliverables will result in delay of the payment.

# 11. Terms and Conditions

- Service Level Agreement and Non-Disclosure Agreement
   The successful bidder will need to sign a SLA and NDA with SSL
- II. No Commitment to accept lowest or any other bid



- a. SSL shall be under no obligation to accept the lowest or any other offer received in response to this tender (RFP) notice.
- b. SSL further reserves the right to reject any or all offers based on its own evaluation of the offers received, or on the basis of stability, capabilities, track records, reputation among users and other similar credentials of a vendor (bidder).
- c. When SSL makes any such rejection, SSL will not be bound to give any reason and/or justification in this regard to the vendor (bidder).

#### III. Forfeiture of EMD / Security Deposit

In the event of non-compliance or violations of the terms of this RFP, SSL shall be entitled to forfeit the EMD/ Security Deposit.

### IV. Taxes and Levies

- a. Applicable taxes payable at actual as per prevailing rate of taxes as per Government notification
- b. In case of tax exemption or lower TDS; vendor has to submit letter from Government Authority for tax exemption or lower TDS (to be submitted along with each of the invoice(s))

### V. Intellectual Property

SSL shall have sole exclusive ownership to all its Intellectual property including and not limited to its trademarks, logos etc. This RFP shall in no way be considered as a transfer or assignment of the respective rights over any intellectual property owned, developed or being developed by SSL.

#### VI. No Set-Off, Counter-Claim and Cross Claims

In case the bidder has any other business relationship(s) with SSL, no right of set-off, counter-claim and cross-claim and or otherwise will be available under this Contract/Agreement to the bidder for any payments receivable under and in accordance with that business.

# VII. Corrupt and Fraudulent practice

It is required that the Bidder observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts and not to indulge in any corrupt and fraudulent practice. "Corrupt Practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of anything of value to influence the action of an official in the procurement process or in contract execution.

"Fraudulent Practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of contract to the detriment of SSL and includes

collusive practice among bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive SSL of the benefits of free and open competition. SSL reserves the right to reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract in question.

SSL reserves the right to declare a bidder ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a contract if at any time it becomes known that the firm has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the contract.

### VIII. Award Notification

The SSL will award the contract to the successful bidder, out of the bidders who have responded to SSL's tender as referred above, who has been determined to qualify to



perform the contract satisfactorily, whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive and gets highest score on Techno-commercial evaluation.

### IX. Penalties for Delayed Implementation

The selected bidder shall adhere to the delivery timelines as mentioned in Section 6 of this RFP. For every 1-week delay in submission of the final deliverable SSL will be entitled to impose penalty of 1% of Contract value subject to maximum penalty of 10% of PO value. If delay exceeds 10% of PO value, SSL reserves the right to terminate the contract.

Penalties shall not be applicable in case of delay due to reasons attributed to SSL, delays caused by an external vendor or delays resulting from unanticipated technical issues, provided the Bidder has taken reasonable steps to mitigate the impact. The selected bidder will be given an opportunity to explain the reasons for the delay in writing (along with Evidence) which will be reviewed and penalty will be imposed if the reasons are not found satisfactory

#### X. Right to Alter RFP

- a. SSL reserves the right to alter the RFP terms and conditions at any time before submission of the bids
- b. SSL reserves the right to modify, amend, alter and/or cancel the entire RFP at any stage without assigning any reason whatsoever.
- c. SSL's decision in this regard will be final and binding on all vendors (bidders).

# 12. **General Terms and Conditions**

- The bidders have to quote all the items mentioned in the Commercial / financial bid.
- The Tender shall be unconditional and any conditional/incomplete Tender shall not be accepted.
- No escalation in rates on any account shall be permitted during the contract period.
- No advance payment shall be released to the successful bidder.
- The bidder will have to execute an Integrity pact with the Corporation. The format of the same is provided as Annexure 7. The bidder will have to submit a signed and stamped copy of the Integrity Pact by the authorized signatory.
- SSL interpretation regarding errors in particulars or typographical or clerical errors shall be final and binding on the Bidder.
- The Vendor, who's tender, is finally accepted & approved, will have to execute the Contract documents with SSL or as may be decided by SSL from time to time.
- SSL reserves the right to ask for any further details for arriving at a decision. SSL reserves the right to waive any minor deviation or omission.
- The Corporation reserves the right to change / modify the format / draft of any items mentioned in the financial bid.



# 13. Termination of Contract

- SSL reserves the right to terminate the contract without any compensation by giving the Bidder 30 day's prior notice & the Bank Guarantee will be invoked forthwith, if the performance of the Bidder is found to be unsatisfactory or not meeting Service Level Requirement at any point of time. Any decision in this regard of SSL shall be final, conclusive & binding on the Bidder.
- The bidder agrees that in the event of termination of this agreement, the bidder shall continue to provide services in the same manner for the notice period. The bidder agrees to co-operate with SSL for the smooth transfer of the subject matter of this agreement to any other party appointed for the purpose by SSL.
- Where the Bidder's ability to survive as an independent corporate entity is threatened or is lost owing to any reason whatsoever, including inter-alia the filing of any bankruptcy proceedings against the Bidder, any failure by the Bidder to pay any of its dues to its creditors, the institution of any winding up proceedings against the Bidder or the happening of any such events that are adverse to the commercial viability of the Bidder. In the event of the happening of any events of the above nature, SSL shall reserve the right to take any steps as are necessary, to ensure the business continuity.
- Termination for Insolvency: SSL may at any time terminate the Contract by giving written notice to
  the Bidder, without compensation to the Bidder, if the Bidder becomes bankrupt or otherwise
  insolvent, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy
  which has accrued or will accrue thereafter to SSL.
- Termination for Default: SSL without prejudice to any other right or remedy for breach of Contract, by a written notice of default sent to the Vendor, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part.

# 14. Dispute Resolution

- The Parties shall use their best efforts to amicably settle all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract in the following manner:
  - d. The Party raising the dispute shall address to the other Party a notice requesting an amicable settlement of the dispute within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the notice.
  - e. The matter will be referred for negotiation between Authorized Representative from SSL and Vendor/Contractor. The matter shall then be resolved by them and the agreed course of action documented within a further period of 15 days.
- The Parties agree that any dispute between the Parties, which cannot be settled by negotiation in the manner, described above, may be resolved exclusively by arbitration and such dispute may be submitted by either party to arbitration within 30 days of the failure of negotiations. Arbitration shall be held in Mumbai, India and conducted in accordance with the provision of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof. Each Party to the dispute shall appoint 1 arbitrator each and the two arbitrators shall jointly appoint the third or the presiding arbitrator. The arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in the English language. Subject to the above, the courts of law at Mumbai alone shall have the jurisdiction in respect of all matters connected with the Contract. The arbitration award shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the Parties and judgment may be entered thereon, upon the application of either party to a court of competent jurisdiction. Each Party shall bear the cost of preparing and presenting its case, and the cost of arbitration, including fees and expenses of the arbitrators, shall be shared equally by the Parties unless the award otherwise provides.
- The Bidder shall not be entitled to suspend the provision of the Services or the completion of the job,



pending resolution of any disputes between the Parties and shall continue to render the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract notwithstanding the existence of any dispute between the Parties or the subsistence of any arbitration or other proceedings.

• The provision under this section survives the contract.

# 15. Governing Law

This Contract shall be governed in accordance with the laws of India. These provisions shall survive the Contract.

# 16. Jurisdiction of Courts

The courts of India at Mumbai have exclusive jurisdiction to determine any proceeding in relation to this Contract. These provisions shall survive the Contract.

# 17. Force Majeure

- Neither the SSL nor the Bidder shall be responsible for any failure to fulfil any term or condition of the CONTRACT if and to the extent that fulfilment has been delayed or temporarily prevented by a Force Majeure occurrence, defined as "Force Majeure". For purposes of this clause, "Force Majeure" mean an event beyond the control of the Parties and which prevents a Party from complying with any of its obligations under this Contract, including but not limited to: acts of God not confined to the premises of the Party claiming the Force Majeure, flood, drought, lightning or fire, earthquakes, strike, lock-outs beyond its control, labour disturbance not caused at the instance of the Party claiming Force Majeure, acts of government or other competent authority, war, terrorist activities, military operations, riots, epidemics, civil commotions etc. The Party seeking to rely on Force Majeure shall promptly, within 5 days, notify the other Party of the occurrence of a Force Majeure event as a condition precedent to the availability of this defense with particulars detailed in writing to the other Party and shall demonstrate that it has taken and is taking all reasonable measures to mitigate the events of Force Majeure. And, all Parties will endeavor to agree on an alternate mode of performance in order to ensure the continuity of service and implementation of the obligations of a party under the Contract and to minimize any adverse consequences of Force Majeure.
- Each PARTY shall bear its own cost in relation to the force majeure occurrence. However, any failure or lapse on the part of the Bidder to mitigate the damage that may be caused due to the above-mentioned events or the failure to provide adequate disaster management/recovery or any failure in setting up a contingency mechanism would not constitute force Majeure, as set out above. If the duration of delay exceeds ninety (90) consecutive or one hundred eighty (180) cumulative days, SSL and the Bidder shall hold consultations with each other in an endeavor to find a solution to the problem. Notwithstanding above, the decision of the SSL, shall be final and binding on the bidder.



# **List of Annexures**

# **Annexure 1 – Details of Bidders Profile**

(to be submitted along with technical bid on company letter head)

Details filled in this form must be accompanied by sufficient documentary evidence, in order to verify the correctness of the information.

SI. No	Parameters	Response	
1	Name of the Firm/ Company		
2	Year of Incorporation in India		
3	Names of the Partners/Directors		
4	Company PAN no		
5	Company GSTN no. (please attach annexures for all states)		
	Addresses of Firm/Company		
6	a) Head Office		
	b) Local Office in Mumbai(if any)		
	Authorized Contact person		
7	a) Name and Designation		
7	b) Telephone number		
	c) E-mail ID		
	Financial parameters		
	Dusing and Deputite (least though upon)	Annual Turnover	Net Worth
	Business Results (last three years)	(Rs. in Crores)	(Rs. in Crores)
8	2021-22		
8	2022-23		
	2023-24		
	(Only Company figures need to be mentioned not to include group/subsidiary Company figures)	(Mention the abov onl	

N.B. Enclose copies of Audited Balance Sheet along with enclosures
Dated this Day of2024
(Signature) (In the capacity of)



# Annexure 2 - Eligibility Criteria

(to be submitted along with technical bid on company letter head)

Sr. No.	Criteria details	Supporting documentation	Bidder Response
1	The Bidder should be a Corporate / LLP Firm and should have been incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 and subsequent amendments thereto.	Incorporation /	
2	The Bidder must be a reputed and experienced Company operating in the field of IT apps development for Stocking Broking companies for a minimum period of 5 years.	Self -Declaration by authorized signatory of the Bidder supported by copies of Client Work Order confirming year and area of activity.	
3	The Bidder should be a profit-making company/ firm for the last three consecutive financial years (2023-24, 2022-23, 2021-22)	Audited financial	
4	The Bidder should have an average annual turnover of at least INR 2 Crores for last three financial years (2023-24, 2022-23, 2021-22)	Audited financial statements	
5	The Bidder should have a minimum number of 30 full time professional on their payroll to support development, integration and periodic maintenance of the mobile app.	authorized signatory	
6	The Bidder should have an office registered in India. One of its offices must be in Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMR) region to handle the project smoothly.	address and contact	
7	similar assignment involving development of	Letter from customer / work order mentioning similar assignments.	
	and provided managed services for least 1	Letter from customer / work order mentioning similar assignments.	



	The Bidder should not have been	A Self-Declaration to be
	blacklisted/debarred by the Central	furnished by the Bidder on
9		the Company's letter head
		for the same.
	Authorities/ Financial Institutions/	
	Banks/Public Sector Undertakings in India	

### Note:

- a) All self-certificates shall be duly signed and Stamped by Authorized signatory of the Bidder Firm unless specified otherwise.
- b) Bidder response should be complete; Yes/No answer is not acceptable.
- c) Details of clients and relevant contact details are mandatory. Bidders may take necessary approval of the clients in advance before submission of related information. SSL will not make any separate request for submission of such information.

Dated this Day of2024
(Signature)
(In the capacity of)
Duly authorized to sign bid with seal for & on behalf of (Name & Address of the Bidder)



# **Annexure 3**

# Format for Unconditional Acceptance of Terms & Conditions of the RFP

(to be submitted along with technical bid on company letter head)

Date:

To, Stockholding Services Ltd. SHCIL House, P-51, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai - 400710

Ref: RFP for Selection of Mobile App Development Partner

Ref RFP No:

This is to confirm that we unconditionally accept all the terms and conditions as mentioned in the said RFP floated for Stockholding Services Ltd. regarding Selection of Mobile App Development Partner

Signature:

Name of the Authorized Person:

Designation: Company Seal



# **Annexure 4**

### **Undertaking**

(to be submitted along with technical bid on company letter head)

To, Stockholding Services Ltd. SHCIL House, P-51, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai - 400710

Ref: RFP for Selection of Mobile App Development Partner

### Ref RFP No:

We,	(name and designation) on behalf or having its registered office at	
have submitted a Bid proposal to Stockholding Service	_	in
response to the Request for Proposal (RFP) dated	issued by SSL.	

- 1. We are duly authorized persons to submit this undertaking
- 2. We have read and understood the aforesaid RFP and we hereby convey our absolute and unconditional acceptance to the aforesaid RFP.
- 3. We do not have any business relationship with Stockholding Services Ltd including its directors and officers which may result in any conflict of interest between us and Stockholding Services Ltd. We shall on occurrence of any such event immediately inform the concerned authorities of the same.
- 4. We have submitted our Bid in compliance with the specific requirements as mentioned in this RFP.
- 5. We have provided all the necessary information and details as required by Stockholding Services Ltd and shall provide such additional information's may be required by Stockholding Services Ltd from time to time.
- 6. Neither we nor any of our employee/director has been barred from providing the Services nor are we in negative list/blacklisted by any public sector, statutory or regulatory or investigative agencies in India or abroad in the last 5 years.
- 7. There are no vigilance and / or court cases pending against us/company and no inquiry or investigation pending against us from any statutory regulatory and / or investigation agency.
- 8. All the information furnished here in and as per the document submitted is true and accurate and nothing has been concealed or tampered with. We have gone through all the conditions of Bid and are aware that we would be liable to any punitive action in case of furnishing of false information / documents.



- 9. We also undertake that; we were/are never involved in any legal case that may affect the solvency / existence of our organization or in any other way that may affect capability to provide / continue the services to SSL.
- 10. It is further certified that we have not modified or deleted any text/matter in this RFP.

Signature
Name of the signatory
Designation
Mobile no.
Company Seal



# **Annexure 5**

### **Proposed Team Profile**

(to be submitted along with technical bid on company letter head)

Please provide Resource details for both Implementation Phase and Support Phase

Sr. No.	Name of proposed Team Member	Professional	of experience	aroac of	Remarks, if any

<sup>\*</sup>Please provide details about the projects undertaken including project scope, client name, team member's role and responsibilities on the Project etc.

Resource Person	Experience*	Remarks**
Project Manager	Experience of managing similar assignments in current or previous organizations	Mandatory
Solution Architect	Experience of managing similar assignments in current or previous organizations	Mandatory
Development Team	Experience of working in similar assignments in current or previous organizations	Mandatory
Testing Team	Experience of working in similar assignments in current or previous organizations	Mandatory

P	la	C	e	:

Date

Seal and signature of the bidder

# **Annexure 6**

# **Commercial Bid Format**

(to be submitted along with technical bid on company letter head only on the auction platform. Physical copy not needed)

Please provide commercial details in the following prescribed format

Header	Cost in INR (exclusive of Taxes)
Cloud Infra setup including indicative licensing cost* (Breakup of	
Yearly Managed Services Cost for Cloud Infra	
Implementation Cost for Mobile App development including UI/UX and all items highlighted in scope	
Yearly AMC cost for maintenance of both mobile apps	

*Cloud Service Provider Licensing Cost should be passed through t	o SSL	at no	mark up.	This o	cost w	ill not
be considered for evaluation of commercial Bid.						

Place:

Date

Seal and signature of the bidder



# <u>Annexure 7</u>

## **Integrity Pact**

(To be executed on Rs. 500/- stamp paper and original document to be submitted)

(Name of the Department / Office) RFP No: for
This pre-bid pre-contract Integrity Pact (Agreement) (hereinafter called the Integrity Pact) (IP) is
made on day of the, between, on one hand, SSL, a
company incorporated under Companies Act, 1956, with its Registered Office Plot No. P-51,
T.T.C. Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi Mumbai - 400 710 acting through its authorized
officer, (hereinafter called Principal), which expression shall mean and include unless the context
otherwise requires, his successors in office and assigns) of the First Part And
M/s(with complete address and contact
details)represented by Shri (i.e. s (bidders) hereinafter called the `Counter Party') which
expression shall mean and include, unless the context otherwise requires, his successors and
permitted assigns) of the Second Part.

AND WHEREAS the PRINCIPAL/Owner values full compliance with all relevant laws of the land, rules, regulationseconomicuseofresourcesandoffairness/transparencyinitsrelationwithBidder(s) /Contractor(s)/Counter Party(ies).

AND WHEREAS, in order to achieve these goals, the Principal/Owner has appointed Independent External Monitors (IEM) to monitor the Tender (RFP) process and the execution of the Contract for compliance with the principles as laid down in this Agreement.

WHEREAS THE Principal proposes to procure the Goods/services and Counter Party is willing to supply/has promised to supply the goods OR to offer/has offered the services and WHEREAS the Counter Party is a private Company/Public Company/Government Undertaking/ Partnership, constituted in accorded with the relevant law in the matter and the Principal is a Government Company performing its functions as a registered Public Limited Company regulated by Securities Exchange Board of India. NOW THEREFORE, To avoid all forms of corruption by following a system that is fair, transparent and free from any influence prejudiced dealings prior to, during and subsequent to the tenor of the contract to be entered into with a view to "- Enabling the PRINCIPAL to obtain the desired goods/services at competitive price in conformity with the defined specifications by avoiding the high cost and the distortionary impact of corruption on public procurement, and Enabling the Counter Party to abstain from bribing or indulging in any type of corrupt practice in order to secure the contract by providing assurance to them that their competitors will also abstain from bribing and other corrupt practices and the PRINCIPAL will commit to prevent corruption, in any form, by its officials by following transparent procedures. The parties hereto hereby agree to enter into this Integrity Pact and agree as follows:



## I. Commitment of the Principal / Buyer

- 1. The Principal Owner commits itself to take all measures necessary to prevent corruption and to observe the following principles: -
- a) No employee of the Principal/Owner, personally or through any of his/her family members, will in connection with the Tender (RFP) or the execution of the contract, procurement or services/goods, demand, take a promise for or accept for self or third person, any material or immaterial benefit which the person not legally entitled to.
- b) The Principal/Owner will, during the Tender (RFP) Process treat all Bidder(s)/Counter Party(ies) with equity and reason. The Principal / Owner will, in particular, before and during the Tender (RFP) Process, provide to all Bidder(s) / Counter Party(ies) the same information and will not provide to any Bidder(s)/Counter Party(ies) confidential / additional information through which the Bidder(s)/Counter Party(ies) could obtain an advantage in relation to the Tender (RFP) Process or the Contract execution.
- c) The Principal / Owner shall endeavor to exclude from the Tender (RFP) process any person, whose conduct in the past been of biased nature.
- 2. If the Principal / Owner obtains information on the conduct of any of its employees which is a criminal offence under the Indian Penal Code (IPC) / Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988 (PC Act) or is in violation of the principles herein mentioned or if there is a substantive suspicion in this regard, the Principal / Owner / SSL will inform the Chief Vigilance Officer through the Vigilance Officer and in addition can also initiate disciplinary actions as per its internal laid down policies and procedures.

#### II. Commitments of Counter Parties/Bidders

- 1. The Counter Party commits itself to take all measures necessary to prevent corrupt practices, unfair means and illegal activities during any stage of bid or during any pre-contract stage in order to secure the contract or in furtherance to secure it and in particular commit itself to the following. Counter Party (ies) / Bidders commits himself to observe these principles during participation in the Tender (RFP) Process and during the Contract execution.
- 2. The Counter Party will not offer, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favour, any material or immaterial benefit or other advantage, commission, fees, brokerage or inducement to any official of the PRINCIPAL, connected directly or indirectly with the bidding process, or to any person organization or third party related to the contract in exchange for any advantage in the bidding, evaluation, contracting and implementation of the contract.
- 3. The Counter Party further undertakes that it has not given, offered or promised to give directly or indirectly any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favor, any material or immaterial benefit or other advantage, commission, fees, brokerage or inducement to any official of the Principal/SSL or otherwise in procurement the Contract or forbearing to do or having done any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of the contract or any other contract with the Principal / SSL for forbearing to show favor or disfavor to any person in relation to the contract or any other contract with the Principal / SSL.



- 4. Bidder/ Counter Party shall disclose the name and address of agents and representatives, if any, handling the procurement / service contract.
- 5. Bidder / Counter Party shall disclose the payments to be made by them to agents/ brokers; or any other intermediary if any, in connection with the bid / contract.
- 6. The Bidder/ Counter Party has to further confirm and declare to the Principal / SSL that the Bidder/ Counter Party is the original integrator and has not engaged any other individual or firm or company, whether Indian or foreign to intercede, facilitate or in any way to recommend to Principal/ SSL or any of its functionaries whether officially or unofficially to the award of the contract to the Bidder/ Counter Party nor has any amount been paid, promised or intended to the be paid to any such individual, firm or company in respect of any such intercession, facilitation or recommendation.
- 7. The Bidder/ Counter Party has to submit a Declaration along with Technical Bid, as given at Annexure 6. If bids are invited through a Consultant a Declaration has to be submitted along with the Technical Bids as given at Annexure.
- 8. The Bidder / Counter Party, either while presenting the bid or during pre- contract negotiation or before signing the contract shall disclose any payments made, is committed to or intends to make to officials of SSL/ Principal, or their family members, agents, brokers or any other intermediaries in connection with the contract and the details of services agreed upon for such payments.
- The Bidder/ Counter Party will not collude with other parties interested in the contract to impair the transparency, fairness and progress of bidding process, bid evaluation, contracting and implementation of the Contract.
- 10. The Bidder/ Counter Party shall not accept any advantage in exchange for any corrupt practice, unfair means and illegal activities.
- 11. The Bidder shall not use improperly, for purposes of competition or personal gain, or pass on to others, any information provided by the Principal/ SSL as part of the business relationship, regarding plans, technical proposals and business details, including information contained in any electronic data carrier. The Bidder/ Counter Party also Undertakes to exercise due and adequate care lest any such information is divulged.
- 12. The Bidder/ Counter Party commits to refrain from giving any complaint directly or through any other manner without supporting it with full and verifiable facts.
- 13. The Bidder/ Counter Party shall not instigate or cause to instigate any third person including their competitor(s) of bidding to commit any of the actions mentioned above.
- 14. If the Bidder/ Counter Party or any employee of the Bidder or any person acting on behalf of the Bidder/ Counter Party, either directly or indirectly, is a relative of any of the official/employee of Principal / SSL, or alternatively, if any relative of an official / employee of Principal/SSL has financial interest/stake in the Bidder's / Counter Party firm, the same shall be disclosed by the Bidder/ Counter Party at the time of filing of tender (RFP).
- 15. The term 'relative" for this purpose would be as defined in Section 2 Sub Section 77 of the Companies Act, 2013.
- 16. The Bidder/ Counter Party shall not lend to or borrow any money from or enter into any monetary dealings or transactions, directly or indirectly, with any employees/ officials of the Principal/ SSL
- 17. The Bidder/ Counter Party declares that no previous transgression occurred in the last three years immediately before signing of this IP, with any other Company/ Firm/ PSU/ Departments in respect of any corrupt practices envisaged hereunder that could justify Bidder/ Counter Party exclusion from the Tender (RFP) Process.



18. The Bidder / Counter Party agrees that if it makes incorrect statement on this subject, Bidder / Counter Party can be disqualified from the tender (RFP) process or the contract, if already awarded, can be terminated for such reason.

## III. Disqualification from Tender (RFP) Process and exclusion from Future Contracts

- 1. If the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s), either before award or during execution of Contract has committed a transgression through a violation of Article II above or in any other form, such as to put his reliability or credibility in question, the Principal / SSL is entitled to disqualify the Bidder/Counter Party/ Contractor from the Tender (RFP) Process or terminate the Contract, if already executed or exclude the Bidder/ Counter Party / Contractor from future contract award processes. The imposition and duration of the exclusion will be determined by the severity of transgression and determined by Principal / SSL. Such exclusion may be for a period of 1 year to 3 years as per the procedure prescribed in guidelines of the Principal/ SSL.
- 2. The Bidder / Contractor/ Counter Party accepts and undertake to respect and uphold the Principal/ SSL's absolute right to resort to and impose such exclusion.
- Apart from the above, the Principal/ SSL may take action for banning of business dealings/ holiday listing of the Bidder/ Counter Party/ Contractor as deemed fit by the Principal/ Owner / SSL.
- 4. The Bidder/ Contractor/ Counter Party can prove that it has resorted/ recouped the damage caused and has installed a suitable corruption prevention system, the Principal / Owner/ SSL may at its own discretion, as per laid down organizational procedure, revoke the exclusion prematurely.

# IV. Consequences of Breach

Without prejudice to any rights that may be available to the Principal/ SSL/ Owner under Law or the Contract or its established policies and laid down procedure, the Principal/ SSL/ Owner shall have the following rights in case of breach of this Integrity Pact by the Bidder/ Contractor(s) / Counter Party: -

- Forfeiture of EMD / Security Deposit: If the Principal / SSL / Owner has disqualified the Bidder(s)/Counter Party(ies) from the Tender (RFP) Process prior to the award of the Contract or terminated the Contract or has accrued the right to terminate the Contract according the Article III, the Principal / SSL/ Owner apart from exercising any legal rights that may have accrued to the Principal / SSL / Owner, may in its considered opinion forfeit the Earnest Money Deposit / Bid Security amount of the Bidder / Contractor / Counter Party.
- 2. Criminal Liability: If the Principal / Owner / SSL obtains knowledge of conduct of a Bidder / Counter Party / Contractor, or of an employee of a representative or an associate of a Bidder / Counter Party / Contractor which constitute corruption within the meaning of PC Act, or if the Principal / Owner / SSL has substantive suspicion in this regard, the Principal / SSL / Owner will inform the same to the Chief Vigilance Officer through the Vigilance Officer.

### V. Equal Treatment of all Bidders/Contractors / Subcontractors / Counter Parties

1. The Principal / SSL / Owner will enter into Pacts on identical terms as this one with all Bidders / Counterparties and Contractors.



 The Principal / SSL / Owner will disqualify Bidders / Counter Parties / Contractors who do not submit, the duly signed Pact, between the Principal / Owner / SSL and the Bidder/Counter Parties, along with the Tender (RFP) or violate its provisions at any stage of the Tender (RFP) process, from the Tender (RFP) process.

# VI. Independent External Monitor (IEM)

- The Principal / Owner / SSL has appointed competent and credible Independent External Monitor (s) (IEM) for this Pact. The task of the Monitor is to review independently and objectively, whether and to what extent the parties comply with the obligations under this Integrity Pact.
- 2. The IEM is not subject to instructions by the representatives of the parties and performs his functions neutrally and independently. He reports to the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director, Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited.
- 3. The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) / Counter Party(ies) accepts that the IEM has the right to access without restriction, to all Tender (RFP) documentation related papers / files of the Principal / SSL / Owner including that provided by the Contractor(s) / Bidder / Counter Party. The Counter Party / Bidder / Contractor will also grant the IEM, upon his request and demonstration of a valid interest, unrestricted and unconditional access to his Tender (RFP) Documentation / papers / files. The IEM is under contractual obligation to treat the information and documents of the Bidder(s) / Contractor(s) / Counter Party (ies) with confidentiality.
- 4. In case of tender (RFP)s having value of Rs.5 crore or more, the Principal / SSL / Owner will provide the IEM sufficient information about all the meetings amongst the parties related to the Contract/Tender (RFP) and shall keep the IEM apprised of all the developments in the Tender (RFP) Process.
- 5. As soon the IEM notices, or believes to notice, a violation of this Pact, he will so inform the Management of the Principal / Owner /SSL and request the Management to discontinue or take corrective action, or to take other relevant action. The IEM can in this regard submit non-binding recommendations. Beyond this, the IEM has no right to demand from the parties that they act in a specific manner, refrain from action or tolerate action.
- 6. The IEM will submit a written report to the CEO&MD, SSL. Within 6 to 8 weeks from the date of reference or intimation to him by the Principal / Owner / SSL and should the occasion arise, submit proposals for correcting problematic situations.
- 7. If the IEM has reported to the CEO&MD, SSL Ltd. a substantiated suspicion of an offence under the relevant IPC/PC Act, and the CEO & MD, SSL has not within reasonable time taken visible action to proceed against such offence or reported it to the Chief Vigilance Officer, the IEM may also transmit the information directly to the Central Vigilance Officer.
- 8. The word 'IEM' would include both singular and plural.

### VII. Duration of the Integrity Pact (IP)

This IP begins when both the parties have legally signed it. It expires for the Counter Party / Contractor / Bidder, 12 months after the completion of work under the Contract, or till



continuation of defect liability period, whichever is more and for all other Bidders, till the Contract has been awarded. If any claim is made / lodged during the time, the same shall be binding and continue to be valid despite the lapse of this Integrity Pact as specified above, unless it is discharged / determined by the MD & CEO of SSL.

#### VIII. Other Provisions

- 1. This IP is subject to Indian Law, place of performance and jurisdiction is the Head Office / Regional Offices of the SSL /Principal / Owner who has floated the Tender (RFP).
- 2. Changes and supplements in any Procurement / Services Contract / Tender (RFP) need to be made in writing. Change and supplement in IP need to be made in writing.
- 3. If the Contractor is a partnership or a consortium, this IP must be signed by all the partners and consortium members. In case of a Company, the IP must be signed by a representative duly authorized by Board resolution.
- 4. Should one or several provisions of this IP turn out to be invalid; the remainder of this Pact remains valid. In this case, the parties will strive to come to an agreement to their original intentions.
- 5. Any dispute or difference arising between the parties with regard to the terms of this Agreement / Pact, any action taken by the Principal / Owner / SSL in accordance with this Agreement / Pact or interpretation thereof shall not be subject to arbitration.

### IX. Legal and Prior Rights

All rights and remedies of the parties hereto shall be in addition to all the other legal rights and remedies belonging to such parties under the Contract and / or law and the same shall be deemed to be cumulative and not alternative to such legal rights and remedies aforesaid. For the sake of brevity, both the Parties agrees that this Pact will have precedence over the Tender (RFP) / Contract documents with regard to any of the provisions covered under this Integrity Pact.

IN WITHNESS WHEREOF the parties have signed ar place and date first above mentioned in the presence	<b>9</b> , , ,
(For and on behalf of Principal / Owner / SSL)	
(For and on behalf of Bidder / Counter Party / Contract	- ctor)
WITNESSES:	
1.	(Signature, name and address)



2.	(Sig	nature, na	me and a	address)	
	In case of Purchase Orders wherein formal agreements ses may be deleted from the past part of the Agreement.	are not	signed	references t	to



### Covering Letter on bidder's letterhead (Annexure of Integrity Pact)

Date:		
To, StockHolding Services Limited (SSL)		
Sub: RFP No:	dated	for New Mobile application
Dear Sir/Madam.		

StockHolding Services Limited (SSL) hereby declares that SSL has adopted Integrity Pact (IP) Program as advised by Central Vigilance Commission vide its Letter No. 015/VG:/012-276469 (circular No. 05-01-22) dated 25.01.2022 and stands committed to following the principles of transparency, equity and competitiveness in public procurement. The subject Notice Inviting Tender (RFP) (NIT) is an invitation to offer made on the condition that the Bidder will sign the Integrity Agreement, which is an integral part of tender (RFP) documents, failing which the tenderer / bidder will stand disqualified from the tendering process and the bid of the bidder would be summarily rejected. This Declaration shall form part and parcel of the Integrity Agreement and signing of the same shall be deemed as acceptance and signing of the Integrity Agreement on behalf of the SSL.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of StockHolding Services Limited (Authorized Signatory)